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SENATE, No. 1537 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

INTRODUCED DECEMBER 16, 1974 

By Senator MERLINO 

Referred to Committee on Revenue, Finance and Appropriations 

AN ACT authorizing th€ creation of debt of the State of New Jersey 

by the issuance of bonds of the State in the sum of $180 million to 

provide money to spur construction and rehabilitation of hous­

ing; to enable such housing to be occupied by senior citizens and 

families of low and moderate income; to provide the ways and 

means to pay the interest of said debt and also to pay and dis­

charge the principal thereof; and to provide fot· the submission 

of this act to the people at a general election. 

1 BE IT ENACT!m by the Senate 11t1d General .A:;sembly of the State 

2 of New Jersey: 

1 1. This act may be cited as the ''New Jersey Housing Assistance 

2 Bond Act of 1975." 

1 2. The Legislature hereby finds that: 

2 a. Despite the existence of num€rous Federal programs designed 

3 to provide housing for senior citizens and families of low and 

4 moderate income, construction and rehabilitation of such housing 

5 units has not proceeded at a pace sufficient to provide for the 

6 population growth of the State. 

7 b. The need for such new and rehabilitated housing is great and 

8 continues to increase, with growing numbers of New Jersey citizens 

9 unable to obtain safe and sound dwelling places. 

10 c. The State, through the investment of a relatively modest sum 

11 of money, can cause th€ production of such new and rehabilitated 

12 housing to be increased; in conjunction with Federal, other State 

13 and local programs acting in concert, such State money can en-

14 courage the increased investment of private funds in housing on a 

15 multiplier basis far exceeding the initial expenditure of these State 

16 funds. 

17 d. The actual cost of providing new and rehabilitated housing 

18 units of decent quality and size generally places such units beyond 

19 the means of senior citizens and families of low and moderate 
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20 income. In order to enable such senior citizens and families to 

21 oocupy such units, some additional form of assistance is necessary. 

22 This assistance can and should take many forms, because of the 

23 large number of housing ,programs presently available. By provid-

24 iug conditions that will accelerate housing production under 

25 various housing programs, the maximum potential for a rapid in-

26 crease in housing production is achieved. 

27 e. At this time of serious unemployment in New Jersey, particu-

2R larly in the housing and construction induRtries, thorP is an urgent 

29 need for the public sector to stimulate increased economic activity 

30 to create expanded employment opportunities for New Jersey's 

31 workers. 

32 f. The Legislature also finds and declares that the expenditure 

33 of public funds toward these ends is for a public purpose and in the 

34 public interest. 

1 3. Except as the context may otherwise require: 

2 a. "Department" means the Department of Community Affairs. 

3 b. "Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Department 

4 of Community Affairs. 

5 c. "Act" means this act, and any amendments and supplements 

6 thereto, and any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

7 d. "Housing assistance fund" or "fund" shall mean the fund 

8 created by section 4b. of this act. 

!) e. "Low income," and "moderate income" shall be determined 

10 by the commissioner pursuant to regulations promulgated under 

11 this act, provided however, that the commissioner, in his determina-

12 tion, shall consider the Federal standardH for low and moderate 

13 income for the various communities within the State of New Jersey. 

14 f. "Qualified mortgagor" means any nonprofit or limited divi-

15 dend housing sponsor, owner entity or individual, or any munici-

16 pality, county or public authority, constructing, rehabilitating or 

17 operating housing in New Jersey under a Federal or low or 

18 moderate income housing program, the New Jersey Housing 

19 Finance Agency program, or other programs for low or moderate 

20 income occupancy. 

21 g. "Qualified housing development" means any housing project 

22 built or rehabilitated or to be built or rehabilitated and operated 

23 by a qualified mortgagor. 

24 h. "Senior citizen" means a person of low or moderate income, 

25 62 years of age or older, or families of low or moderate income 

26 which consist of two or more persons and the head of which, or his 

27 spouse, is 62 years of age or older. 
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1 4. a. Bonds of the State of New .Jersey in the sum of $180 million 

2 are hereby authorized to obtain funds to meet the cost of providing 

3 housing assistance as set forth he1·ein. 

4 b. There is hereby created and established in the department a 

5 ''housing assistance fund'' which shall consist of: 

6 (1) All moneys derived f1·om the proceeds of nny bonds 

7 which may be authorized by tlus act; 

8 (2) Any moneys which the department shall receive m 

9 repayment of loans or advances from the fund, notwithstanding 

10 the provisions of any other act or part thereof; 

11 (3) All moneys. received from the investment or deposit of 

12 the proceeds of any bonds which may be authorized by this act; 

13 (4) Any other moneys made available to the department 

14 from any source or sources which fue commissioner shall allo-

15 cate to the fund for the purposes authorized by this act. 

16 c. The commissioner shall submit with the department's annual 

17 budget request a plan for the expenditure of housing assistance 

18 funds for the upcoming fiscal year. '!'his plan shall include, but not 

19 be limited to, the following information: a performance evaluation 

20 of the expenditures made from the fund to date; a description of 

21 the subsidy programs planned for utilization during fue upcom-

22 ing fiscal year; a copy of the regulations in force governing the 

23 operation of programs that are financed, in part or in whole, by 

24 housing assistance funds; and an estimate of expenditures for the 

25 upconling fiscal year. This information shall be used to assist the 

26 Legislature in determining. the amount to appropriate from the 

27 fund. 

1 5. The commissioner is authorized to utilize moneys from the 

2 housing assistance fund for fue following purposes and programs: 

3 a. Interest rate subsidy. The comnlissioner may enter into con-

4 tracts and agreements with qualified mortgagors, or with mort-

5 gagees thereof, pursuant to which the commissioner may make 

6 direct payments to such mortgagors or mortgagees to assist in 

7 paying mortgage interest charges on qualified housing develop­

S ments, where such direct payments will be applied to decrease 

9 rental or carrying charges to low and moderate income occupants 

10 of such housing. 

11 b. Assistance to qualified housing developments. The commis-

12 sioner is authorized to enter into contracts or other agreements 

13 pursuant to which financial assistance will be provided for qualified 

14 housing developments, including but not linllted to those con-

15 structed, financed, or rehabilitated. under Federal, other State, or 
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16 locally aided low and moderate income programs, where such nssis-

17 tance is necessary to provide financial feasibility and enable tlw 

18 developments to be completed. Without limiting the generality of 

19 the foregoing, such assistance may include: n direct loan to n 

20 qualified housing mortgagor, subordinated to the Federal or other 

21 State mortgage loan, with repayment of principal, and interest, if 

22 uny, referred until such time as such l<'ederal or other State loan 

23 is paid or otherwise disclmrged or released; and grunts OJ' l01ms to 

24 municipalities for urban homesteading, or rehabilitation and direct 

25 sale of properties acquired either through tax foreclosure or from 

26 the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

1 6. The commissioner shall issue and promulgate such rules and 

2 regulations as are necessary and appropriate to carry out the pro-

3 visions of this act. 

1 7. The bonds provided for herein shall be serial bonds and known 

2 as '• State Housing Assistance Bonds'' and, as to each series, the 

3 last installment thereof (subject to redemption prior to maturity) 

4 shall mature and be paid not later than 35 years from the date of its 

5 issuance. 

1 8. Said bonds shall be issued from time to time as the issuing 

2 officials herein named shall determine. 

1 9. The Governor, State Treasurer and Comptroller of the 

2 Treasury, or any two such officials (hereinafter referred to as the 

3 "issuing officials") are hereby authorized to carry out the pro-

4 visions of this act relating to the issuance of said bonds, and shall 

5 cretermine all matters in connection therewith subject to provisions 

6 hereof. In case any of said officials shall be absent from the State 

7 or incapable of acting for any reason, his powers and duties shall 

8 be exercised and performed by such person as shall be authorized 

9 by law to act in his place as a State official. 

1 10. Bonds, issued in accordance with the provisions of this act 

2 shall be a direct obligation of the State of New Jersey and the 

3 faith and credit of the State are pledged for the payment! of the 

4 interest thereon as same shall become due and the payment of the 

5 principal at maturity. The principal and interest of such bonds 

6 shall be exempt from taxation by the State or by any county, 

7 municipality or other taxing district of the State. 

1 11. Said bonds shall be signed in the name of the State by the 

2 Governor or by his facsimile signature, under the Great Seal of the 

3 State, and attested by the Secretary of State, or an assistant Secre-

4 tary of State, and shall be countersigned by the facsimile signature 

5 of the Comptroller of the Treasury. Interest coupons attached to 

6 said bonds shall be signed by the facsimile signature of the 
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7 Comptroller of the Treasury. Such bonds may be issued notwith­

l:l standing that any of the official signing them or whose facsimile 

!J signature.s appear on the bonds or coupons shall cease to hold office 

10 at the time of such issue or at the time of the delivery of such bonds 

11 to the purchaser. 

1 12. a. Such bonds shall recite that they are issued for the purpose 

2 set forth in section 5 of this act and that they are issued in pur­

:3 suance of this act and that this act was submitted to the people of the 

4 State at the general election held in the month of November, 1975, 

5 and that it was approved by a mnjority of the legally qualified 

6 I'OterR of the State voting thereon at such election. Such recitals 

7 in said bonds shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of the 

8 State to issue said bonds and of their validity. Any bonds con-

9 taining such recital shall in any suit, action or proceeding involving 

10 their validity be conclusively deemed to be fully authorized by this 

11 act and to have been issued, sold, executed and delivered in con-

12 formity herewith and with all other provisions of statutes appli-

13 cable thereto, and shall be incontestable for any cause. 

14 b. Such bonds shall be issued in such denominations and in such 

15 form or forms, whether coupon or registered as to both principal 

16 and interest, and with or without such provisions for interchange-

17 ability thereof. as may be determined by the is1ming officials. 

1 13. When the bonds are issued from time to time, the bonds of 

2 each issue shall constitute a scpnrate series to be designated by the 

3 issuing officials. Each series of bonds shall bear such rate or rates 

4 of interest as may be determined by the issuing officials, which in-

5 terest shall be payable semiannually; provided, that the first and 

G last interest periods may be longer or shorter, in order that in-

7 tervening semiannual payments may be at convenient dates. 

1 14. Said bonds shall be issued and sold at such price not less than 

2 the par value thereof and accrued interest thereon, and under such 

3 terms, conditions and regulations, as the issuing officials may pre-

4 scribe, after notice of said sale, published at least once in at least 

5 three newspapers published in the State of New .Jersey, and at 

6 least once in a publication carrying municipal bond notices and 

7 de·voted primarily to financial news, published in the city of New 

8 York or in New Jersey, the first notice to be at least 5 days prior 

9 to the day of bidding. The said notice of sale may contain a pro-

10 vision to the effect that any or all bids made in pursuance thereof 

11 may be rejected. In the event of such rejection or of failure to 

12 receive any acceptable bid, the issuing officials, at any time within 

13 60 days from the date of such advertised sale, may sell such bonds 
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14 at private sale at such price not less than the par value thereof and 

15 aoorued interest thereon and in such terms and conditions as the 

16 issuing officinls ma.y prescribe. The issuing officials may sell all or 

17 part of the bonds of any series as issuoo to any State fund m· io tlw 

18 Federal Government or any agency thereof, at p1-ivate sale, without 

19 advertisement. 

1 15. Until permanent bonds can be prepared, the issuing officials 

2 may, in their discretion, issue in lieu of such permanent bonds, 

3 temporary bonds in suclJ. form and with such privileges as to 

4 registration and exchange for permanent bonds as may be, deter-

5 mined by the. issuing offioia.ls. 

1 16. The proceeds from the sale of bonds shall be paid to the State 

2 Treasurer and be held by him for the hoosing assistance fund in a 

3 separate account, to be deposited in such depositories as may be 

4 selected by him to the credit of the fund, which fund shall be known 

5 as the housing assistance fund. 

1 17. a. The moneys in said fund are hereby specifically dedicated 

2 and shall be applied to the cost of the purposes ~et forth in section 

3 5 of this act, and all of such moneys are hereby appropriated for 

4 such purpose, and no such moneys shall be expended for such 

5 purpose (except as otherwise hereinbelow authorized) without the 

6 specific appropriation thereof by the Legislature, but bonds may be 

7 issued as herein provided notwithstanding that the Legislature 

8 shall not have then adopted an act making specific appropriation 

9 of any of said moneys. 

10 b. At any time prior to the issuance and sale of bonds under this 

11 act, the State Treasurer is hereby authorized to transfer from any 

12 !Wailable money in the treasury of the State to the credit of such 

13 fund, such sums as may be deemed necessary for the purposes of 

14 this act by the State House Commission, which said sum so trans-

15 ferred shall be returned to the treasury of this State by the 

16 treasurer thereof from the proceeds of the sale of the first issue of 

17 bonds. 

18 c. Pending their application to the purposes provided in this act, 

19 moneys in the housing assistance fund may be invested and rein-

20 vested as other trust funds in the custody of the State Treasurer 

21 in the manner provided by law. All earnin.gs received from the 

22 investment or deposit af such fund!!· shall be paid into the housing 

23 a.'>sistance fund. 

1 18: In oose any coupon bonds and coupons thereunto appertain-

2 ing or any- registered bond shall become lost, mutilated or 

3 destroyed, a new bond shall be executed and delivered of like tenor, 

vi ,. l 
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in substitution for the lost, mutilated or destroyed bonds or 

coupons, upon the owner furnishing to the .issuing officials evidence 

satisfactory to them of !J1reh luss, mutilation or destruction and also 

such security and indemnity and reimbursement for expenses as 

the issuing officials may require. 

19. Acc111ed interest received upon the sale of said bonds shall 

be applied to the discharge of a like amount of interest upon said 

bonds when due. Any expense incurred by the issuing officials for 

advertising, engraving, printing, clerical, legal or other services 

necessary to carry out the duties imposed upon them by the pro­

visions of this act shall be paid from the proceeds of the sale of 

said bonds, by the State Treasurer upon warrant of the Comp­

troller of the Treasury, in the same manner as other obligations of 

the State are, paid. 

20. Bonds of each series issued hereunder shall mature in annual 

installments commencing not later than the tenth year and ending 

not later than the thirty-fifth year from the date of issue of such 

series, and in such amounts as shall be determined by the issuing 

officials, but the issuing officials may reserve to the State by appro­

priate provision in the bonds of any series the power to redeem 

all or any of such bonds prior to maturity at such price or prices 

and upon such terms and conditions as may be provided in such 

bonds. 

21. The issuing officials may at any time and from time to time 

issue refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding in whole or in 

part an equal principal amonnt of the bonds of any series issued 

and outstanding hereunder, which by their terms are subject to 

redemption prior to maturity, providing such refunding bonds 

shall mature at any time or times not later than the latest maturity 

date of such series, and the aggregate amount of interest to be 

paid on the refunding bonds, plus the premium, if any, to be paid 

on the bonds refunded, shall not exceed the aggregate amount of 

interest that would be paid on th~ bonds to be refunded if such 

bonds were not so refunded. Refunding bonds shall constitute 

direct obligations of the State of New Jersey, and the faith and 

credit of the State are pledged for the payment of the principal 

thereof and the interest thereon. The proceeds received from the 

sale of refunding bonds shall be held in trust and applied to the 

payment of the bonds refunded thereby. Refunding bonds shall be 

entitled to all the benefits of this act and subject to all its limita­

tions except as to the maturities thereof and to the extent herein 

otherwise expressly provided. 
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1 22. To provide funds to meet the interest and principal payments 

2 required for the bonds issued in this act and outstanding, there is 

3 hereby appropriated in the order following: 

4 a. Revenue derived from the tax collected under a!l(t by Yirttw 

5 of the State sales tax, or so much thereof as may be required; un<l 

6 b. If in any year or at any time funds as hereinabove uppro-

7 priated, necessary to meet interest and principal payments upon 

8 outstanding bonds issued under this act, be insufficient or not avail-

9 able, then and in that case there shall be assessed, levied and 

10 collected annually in each of the municipalities of the counties of 

11 this State a tax on real and personal property upon which munici-

12 pal taxes are or shall be assessed, levied and collected, sufficient to 

13 meet the interest on all outstanding bonds issued hereunder and on 

14 such bonds as it is proposed to issue under this act in the calendar 

15 year in which such tax is to be raised and for the payment of bonds 

16 falling due in the year following the year for which the tax is 

17 levied. The tax thus imposed shall be assessed, levied and collected 

18 in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes upon real 

19 and personal property are assessed, levied and collected. The 

20 governing body of each municipality shall cause to be paid to the 

21 county treasurer of the county in which such municipality is 

22 located, on or before December 15 in each year, the amount of tax 

23 herein directed to be assessed and levied, and the county treasurer 

24 shall pay the amount of said tax to the State Treasurer on or before 

25 December 20 in each year. 

26 If on or before December 31 in any year the issuing officials shall 

27 detennine that there are moneys in the General State Fund beyond 

28 the needs of the State, sufficient to meet the principal of bonds 

29 falling due and all interest payable in the ensuing calendar year, 

30 then and in that event such issuing officials shall by resolution so 

31 find and; shall file the same in the office of the State Treasurer, 

32 whereupon the State Treasurer shall transfer such moneys to a 

33 separate fund to be designated by him, and shall pay the principal 

34 and interest out of said fund as the same shall become due and 

35 payable, and the other sources of payment of said principal and 

36 interest provided for in this section shall not then be available, and 

37 the receipts for said year from the fees, charges and taxes specified 

38 in subsection a. of this section shall thereon be considered and 

39 treated as part of the General State Fund, available for general 

40 purposes. 

1 23. Should the State Treasurer by December 31 of any year deem 

2 it necessary, because of insufficiency of funds to be collected from 
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3 the sources of revenues as hereinabove provided, to meet the 

4 interest and principal payments for the year after the ensuing- year, 

:, then the treasurer shall certify to the Comptroller of the Tr<>nsury 

() the amount necessary to be raised by taxation for such purpoH ·s, 

7 the same to be assessed, levied and collected for and in thC' PJJsuing 

8 calendar year. In such case, the Comptroller of thP Treasury shall, 

9 on or before March 1 following, calculate the amount in dollars to 

10 be assessed, levied and collected as herein set forth in each county. 

11 Such calculation shall be based upon the corrected asses~ed valua-

12 tion of such county for the year in which such tax is to be assessed, 

13 but such tax shall be assessed, levied and collected upon the 

14 assessed valuation of the year in which the tax is assessed and 

15 levied. The Comptroller of the Treasury shall certify said amount 

16 to the county board of taxation and the county treasurer of each 

17 county. The .said county board of taxation shall include the proper 

18 amount in the current tax levy of the se\'eral taxing districts of the 

19 county in proportion to the ratables as ascertained for the current 

20 year. 

1 24. For the purpose of complying with the provisions of the State 

2 Constitution this act shall, at the general election to be held in the 

3 month of November, 197(), be submitted to the people. In order to 

4 infonn the people of the contents of this act it shall be the duty of 

5 the Secretary of State after this section shall take effect, and at 

{) least 15 days prior to the said election, to cause this act to he 

7 published in at least 10 newspapers published in the State am! to 

8 notify the clerk of earh county of this State of the passage of thb 

9 act, and the said clerks respectively shall cause to be printed ou 

10 each of the said ballots, the following: 

11 If you approve the act entitled below, make a cross (X), plus 

12 ( +) or check ( v) mark in the square opposite the word ''Yes.'' 

13 If you disapprove the act entitled below, make a cross (X), plus 

14 ( +), or check ( v) mark in the square opposite the word "No." Tf 

15 voting machines are used, a vote of "Yes" or "No" shall be equiv-

1 fi alent to such markings respectively. 

ix 
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HousiNG AssiSTANCE BoND IssuE 

Shall the act entitled ''An act au tho-
rizing the creation of debt of thn State of 
New J ersev bv the> isE<uance> of bond,; of 
the State in the sum of $180 million to 

Yes. provide money to spur construction and 
rehabilitation of housing; to enable such 
housing to be occupied by senior citizens 
and familieH of low and modm·ate ln-
come; to provide the ways and means to 
pay the interest of said debt and also to 
pay and discharge the principal thereof; 
and to provide for the submission of this 
act to the people at a general election,'' 
be approved T 

INTERPRETIVE STATEMENT 

Approval of this act would authorize 

No. 
the sale of $180 million in bonds to be 
used for the construction or rehabilita-
tion of housing for senior citizens and for 
families of modest incomes, to loosen a 
tight housing market, to stimulate in-
creased economic activity and to create 
useful job opportunities. 

-----

17 The fact and date of the approval or pa.ssa!,>"(l of this act, as the> 

IR case may be, may be inserted in the appropriate place after the 

19 title in said ballot. No other requirements of law of any kind or 

20 character as to notice or procedure except as herein provided n~d 

21 be adhered to. 

22 '[he said votes so cast for and against the approval of this act, 

23 by ballot or voting machine, shall be counted and the result thereof 

24 returned by the election offioer, and a canvass of such election had 

25 in the same manner as is now provided for by law in the case of the 

26 election of a Governor, and the approval or disapproval of this act 

27 so determined shall be declared in the same manner as the result 

28 of an election for a Govemor, and if there shall be a majority of all 

29 the votes cast for and against it at such an election in favor of the 

30 approval of this act, then all the provisions of this act shall take 

:n effect forthwith. 

1 25. This section and section 24 shall take effect immediately and 

2 the remainder of the act shall take eil'ect as and when provided in 

:l the preoeding section. 
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STATEJ\IENT 

This bill is intended to addres,s two urgent problems facing the 

citizens of New Jersey. The first is the growing number of 

difficrulties citizens of the State are encountering in their attempts 

to obtain safe and sound housing. The second is the persistentlr 

high ra.te of unemployment the State is experiencing, particularly 

in the housing and construction industries. 

By authorizing $180 million in bonds for various forms of housing 

subsidies for senior citizens and families of low and moderate in­

come, the number of safe and sound housing units in the State will 

be expanded. The resulting increase in Mtivity in the housing in­

dustr-y will help alleviate the unemployment problem in this sector 

of the State's economy. 

This legislation, like the housing bond issue approved by the 

voters in 1968, authorizes the use of the bond proce<>ds to subsidize 

interest rates for qualified housing developments, and to provide 

"seed money" assistance to help I<'ede,rally-aided dcveloimJ,ents 

get started. This legi-slation, howevcr, expands the scope of that 

program in ooveral ways: 

(1) It redefines a "qualified mortgagor" recipient to include mu­

nicipalities, counties and public authorities, and now covers re­

habilita,tion and reconstruction of old existing units as well as new 

buildings. 

(2) The moneY's raised by the proposed 1975 bond issue can be 

used in conjunction with other Sta,te-supported housing programs 

(e.g. those of the Housing Finance Agency) and with locally aided 

developments. The 1968 program only gave explicit authorization 

for" special assistance" to Federally·aided developments. 

(3) It severs the link between aid from this housing assistance 

fund and other government programs. Moneys from the, fund 

would not hm'c to be used only to support developments primarily 

funded from other government progranJs; the fund itself can be the 

primary source of support. This could reduce delays in housing 

starts that arise from attempts to coordinate se-veral diffe,rent 

government agencies. 

( 4) Assistance can be givl'n to municipalitiPs for the rehabilita­

tion of residential properties aequit·ed through tax foreclosure or 

from HUD. This is especially important in view of the recent enact­

ment of an accelerated foreclosure law, P. L. 1974, c. 91 (Senate 

Bill No. 617), which may bring numerous deteriorating but salvage­

able properties more speedily into municipal hands. 
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• Section 4 (c) provides that the Commissioner of Community 

Affai.rs su:bmit its plan for the expenditure of housing assistance 

flmd.moneys each year with its budget request. The Legislature 

will then determine, as part of the 1~ppropriations proooss, the 

amount to appropriate each year from the fund. 'fhe commissioner 

is also required to submit a performnnee evaluation of previous 

expenditures from the fund and a copy of the regulations issued 

pursuant to section 6. This whole subsection is intended to insure 

l~arefullegislative control and supervision over expenditures from 

the fund. 

This bill also provides that interest on deposited funds accrue to 

the hom;ing assistance fund rather than the General Treasury. 

Other than for the amount of the bonds proposed, this program 

it> substantially similar to that approved by the Legislature in 1974 

(P. L. 1974, c. 117). 
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SENATOR JOSEPH P. MERLINO (Chairman): I 

will now call this meeting of the Senate Revenue, Finance, 

and Appropriations Committee to order for the purpose 

of taking testimony on Senate bill 1537. This bill 

authorizes the issuance of state general obligation 

bonds in the amount of $180 million "to provide money 

to spur the construction and rehabilitation of housing 

to be occupied by senior citizens and families of low 

and moderate income." In order that we may proceed in 

an orderly fashion, I will ask anyone who wishes to 

testify, who has not already done so, to give his or her 

name to Mr. Zuzzio, our staff assistant. I will ask 

anyone who-has a written statement to sul::>mit copies 

to the committee members: if you have only one copy, 

please submit it to Mr. Zuzzio at this time and he 

will have additional copies made for the court 

stenographer and members of the staff. 

I am very happy to see that we have five 

or six people who are here to offer some testimony 

and some help on this proposal, but I must say that 

I am rather disappointed in the interest and concern 

of the members of the Legislature who, obviously, 

do not find this to be of interest. The record will 

note that Senator Dwyer is here with me today -- two 

out of ten which is not very representative, at 
least not in the quantity, but I am sure the quality 
is here. 

SENATOR DWYER: One and one-half~ I just 
broke my glasses. 

SENATOR MERLINO: The first speaker on the 

agenda is the Mayor of the City of Trenton, Arthur J. 

Holland. 

MAYOR ARTHUR J. H 0 L L A N D: Mr. 

Chairman and Senator Dwyer: I am Arthur J. Holland, 

Mayor of the City of Trenton. I am pleased to appear be-



fore you to discuss this State's housing needs which are addressed 

by the Housing Assistance Bond Issue legislation pending before 

this committee. 

The need for subsidized housing, as well as for rehabilitation 

assistance, is currently the subject for analysis in Housing Assis­

tance plans being prepared by 46 New Jersey municipalities and eight 

urban counties eligible for community development block grants under 

Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. This 

estimate of the total number of subsidized units required by all of 

these local governments would illustrate dramatically the magnitude 

of our State's housing needs. This estimate would also show the gap 

between subsidized units needed and available Federal funding. In 

Trenton, for example, the need for housing units affordable to lower 

income households (i.e., having under $10,000 annual income) is esti­

mated to be about 7,000, while the entire allocation of units under 

the Title II Section 8 Program for the northern half of New Jersey 

is 5,000 units. The fact is that the Federal government has scaled 

down housing production assistance, and is leaving to the states more 

of the burden for meeting their housing needs. 

In addition to meeting the need to provide affordable and decent 

housing for lower income households, new housing is also needed to 

revitalize our State's cities. The construction of middle and moder­

ate income housing planned for urban renewal land has been an impor­

tant, but largely elusive, goal pursued by Trenton as well as many 

other New Jersey cities. Federal assistance for housill]production under the 
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Section 236 Program, on which cities had relied to construct 

such housing, was revived only briefly last year with the 

release of a mere 70,000 units nationwide after a one year 

moratorium. As a consequence, most subsidized units which 

had been planned for vacant renewal sites in New Jersey 

remain unbuilt. The number of such units is substantial. 

According to a survey of housing and renewal agencies through­

out the State, conducted by Trenton's Department of Planning 

and Development, a copy of which I now submit, over 15,000 

units had been planned for renewal sites with some 11,000 

to have been assisted under the "236'' Program. Many of these 

sites, having been vacant for years, represent an unful­

filled promise to replace with something better that which 

was torn down, as well as an investment of over $87 Million 

for acquisition, relocation and demolition -an investment 

on which there has been no return. Housing units for these 

sites are, of course, in addition to a probably even greater 

number of units planned for non-urban renewal areas. 

The Section 8 housing assistance program may offer 

some hope for providing additional subsidized units but, 

according to the New Jersey Housing Finance Agency and a 

mortgage banker who heads the National Leased Housing Asso­

ciation, the regulations developed by HUD may limit dras­

tically the usefulness of this program. 

There is the added problem of building these units 

at or below the fair market rental established by HUD. It 
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appears that an additional subsidy provided by the State 

through the Housing Finance Agency may be necessary to make 

th~ Section 8 Program feasible. This subsidy, for example, 

could be used to lower the interest cost for developers of 

Section 8 units or to supplement rental payments beyond 

the fair market rents established by HUD. 

Assistance is also needed for moderate income hous­

ing to be built under the Housing Finance Agency apart from 

the Section 8 Program. A subsidy beyond that offered through 

the tax exEmpt feature of the Housing Finance Agency•s bonds 

is necessary to make this housing marketable. To illustrate 

this point, the HFA-financed Kingsbury housing development 

in Trenton offers an efficiency apartment at a market rental 

of $205 and two-bedroom units at market rental of $310. As 

a consequence of these high rent levels, only two units have 

been rented at a market rate in the last two years these 

units have been available. 

In discussing the need for new subsidized housing, I 

want to underscore in particular the needs of the elderly. 

Just a year ago, I had the opportunity of describing those 

needs in some detail before the Subcommittee on Housing for 

the Elderly of the Senate Select Committee on Aging, chaired 

by New Jersey's U.S. Senator Harrison A. Williams, Jr. As I 

pointed out at that time, the construction of some 400 public 

housing units for the elderly has accommodated only about 
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13% of the elderly estimated to be eligible for such hous­

ing in Trenton. More subsidized housing is obviously essen­

tial if the elderly poor, as well as the moderate income 

elderly on fixed incomes, are to be adequately housed at 

an affordable cost. 

Finally, let us not forget that by providing more 

subsidized housing, more jobs are provided. With a State­

wide unemployment rate approaching 10%, this consideration 

is as important as providing new housing. Without these 

jobs, the ability of many of our residents to pay rents, 

and mortg~ge charges as well as property taxes, is seriously 

jeopardized. They and residents throughout the State could 

find themselves unable to afford better housing and may 

even be forced into lower cost housing, thus aggravating 

the problem of an insufficient supply of decent lower cost 

housing in New Jersey. 

I urge this committee to take prompt action on 

Senate Bill 1537 so that the Housing Assistance Bond Issue 

can be placed before the voters in November. 
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SURVEY OF HOUSING PLANNED FOR URBAN RENEWAL SITES 

Renewal Sites Total No. Total No. Total·Amt. Spent 
Proposed for of Acres for of Units Number of for Acq. ,Re1oc., Annual Interest 

C4~v Subsidized Housing Subsidized Housing Planned 236 Units and Demolition Costs on Bc~ds 
;,s!:;:::::v Park 1 6.10 170 ______ 170 -~--~~--1_,_037,45_9_ _$ __ _288,089 
J,tl?.nticCity --~---2 3.6 312 36 1004081 158069 
Ca-:-.:lcon 3 110 2, 000 450 --~1~4,663L712 1SC I oS:J 
C<;rteret 1 25 330 17_6 6_j_QQ_Q....LO_QO~---- _60, OCO 
l:3..3t Oranqe 1 2. 7 200 None ~ ---~2,_8_2L].,__OOO 140 ~CC-C 
Ln:::lc-.;ccd 1 7.5 90 90 1 500 000 _ 50,0:::0 
Gl::ssb:no 1 22. 175 175 166 966 2, 502 
Jc::sey City 5 77 4 391 3 561 14 i78 700 2 29_8,000 
L:::::g Branch 1 5 100 100 250 000 15 000 
!·l:1p1e Shade 1 1. 75 105 105 671 424 12 438 

H:Jntclair 1 10 150 126 225,000 
lic:;-;ark 7 78.37 4,J.85~ ___ 3A9~2 29, 344--'--ooo 1,760, ooo 
Hec·tton 1 8 220 220 293,_QQQ_~~--- ~ 17 t 580 
Passaic •1 1 70 70 100&00 - 15,000 
Paterson 4 8.7 474 440 2~_8_QQ_,__OOO ___ -~- 110,000 
PLdr,field 1 7 90 90 750_/_QQO ____ ~ __ ].OO I oco 
l{c.i<\·la 1 3. '2 ~ ~-~ 40 40 135,000 4 050 
'J.."~rontcn 2 25. - -- 1,_100~ __ 1,100 __ ~~----~~-7,000_,_000__ 150,000 
Vineland 1 17 150 100 3, 5001 000 ___ 55 t COO 
\·lest Ne\\1 York 1 7 684 270 1~000 6, 000 

TOTAL 37 426.02 15,036 10,911 $87,443,342 ~~5J~432,7l3 

Data compiled in this report were collected through mail-out survey forms followed up by telephone contact. out of 
58 fon~s mailed out, 21 reported proposed plans for subsidized housing, 29 reported no plans for subsidized housing 
an6 8 agencies had either closed out their urban renewal projects or no longer served as the LPA of the municipali~y. 
l•gcncies reporting no plans for subsidized housing ar~: Bayonne, Belmar, Bordentown, Bridgeton, Cape May, Clementon, 
Clifton, Dover, Elizabeth, Keansburg, Lakewood, Lodi, Millville, Morristovm, Mount Holly, New Brunswick, Paulsboro, 
Pertr. 2::-.bcy, Pleasantville, Scotch Plains, Sea IslE::! City, Some.rville, South Plain'Sield, Teaneck, Toms River, l'iayne, 
l·;'c:st Orange, Wildwood and I.Yoodbridge. 
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SENATOR MERLINO: Thank you, Mr. Mayor. 

You are also active in the New Jersey Conference 

of Mayors, are you not? 

MAYOR HOLLAND: Yes sir. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Has the New Jersey 

Conference of Mayors discussed this bond proposal? 

MAYOR HOLLAND: We supported the bond 

issue. I do not think we have taken formal action 

on this particular bill, but I can bring it before 

the Legislative Committee. 

SENATOR MERLINO: As Mayor of one of the urban 

cities, don't you think that the support from the Mayors 

of this State would be of some influence in passing such 

a bond issue? 
MAYOR HOLLAND: Yes, and we have consistently 

been in support of such measures. So, I would be 

pleased to bring this particular bill before the 

committee. As with you, we have been so concerned 

with seeking comprehensive tax reform, the key to 

which is an income tax, we have not had the opportunity 

to give attention to other measures. Assuming support 

from that committee, which I am quite sure will be 

forthcoming---

SENATOR MERLINO: There was a similar bond 

issue on the ballot last year -- the $90 million bond 

issue for housing. 
MAYOR HOLLAND: We supported that. 

SENATOR MERLINO: My concern is the public 

support given by groups such as the Conference of 
Mayors and other interested groups. It apparently 

is not too vocal. I do not mean this as a personal 

criticism of you~ we've discussed this before. 

MAYOR HOLLAND: Yes. 

SENATOR MERLINO: When a group such as the 

Conference of Mayors supports or endorses something, 

can't they really let their feelings be known? When 
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a group is in opposition to something, it seems to 

generate a lot more steam than positive support of 

issues such as this. 
MAYOR HOLLAND: In that instance -- I 

notice Sister Ryan is here -- we joined with the 

Bishops of the Catholic Conference of New Jersey. 

As a matter of fact, I went to the Ramada Inn for 

a press conference at which pictures were taken in 

order to promote that particular bond issue. 

SENATOR MERLINO: The only place I saw 

that was in the Diocesan newspapers which do not 

reach all the readers. 

MAYOR HOLLAND: In regard to the 

environmental bond issue, I called a press conference 

for the State, which was held here, and joined with .. 
Commissioner Bardin, former Commissioner Sullivan, 

and others. As you know, it is difficult sometimes 

in fact, it is difficult usually -- to get the good 

news into the press. At least, it is difficult to 

have it featured as prominently as some of the bad 

news. 
SENATOR MERLINO: Well, I guess bad news 

sells papers. 

MAYOR HOLLAND: If it is appropriate, 
Senator, I would like to take this opportunity to 
commend you publicly for---

SENATOR MERLINO: Can you wait until 

the press comes in? (Laughter) 

MAYOR HOLLAND: I assume they are not here. 

SENATOR MERLINO: That 1 s why you 1 re saying 

it. (Laughter) 

MAYOR HOLLAND: Seriously, I would like to 

commend you for not only your support but your 

advocacy and leadership role in proposing and advancing 

and securing passage, on some occasions 
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at least, of progressive legislation such as this 

bill. I refer specifically to probably the most 

basic of all legislative efforts, and that is the one 

for comprehensive tax reform. You have been very 

courageous in your continued leadership to achieve 

that for this State. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Thank you. Do you have 

any questions, Senator Dwyer? 

SENATOR DWYER: No, but I was wondering if 

there was someone who wanted to be heard from the 

opposite point of view? (Laughter) 

SENATOR MERLINO: I am sure there are many. 

Thank you, Mr. Mayor. Sister Ryan will be the next 

speaker. 

S I S T E R R E G I N A R Y A N: Mr. Chairman and 

member of the committee: I am Sister Regina Ryan of 

the New Jersey Catholic Conference and director of the 

new Department for Social Concerns. The statement I 

read today is the second statement that we have made 

on this crisis in housing: 

STATEMENT OF NEW JERSEY CATHOLIC CONFERENCE IN SUPPORT OF S-1537 

The New Jersey Catholic Conference fully supports S-1537 which 

authorizes the issuance of Bonds of the State in the sum of 

$180 million, thereby providing funds for construction and re-

habilitation of housing. 

It is submitted that the serious need for safe and sound housing 

in the State constitutes one of the most pressing social concerns 

confronting our State today. 

S-1537 will also help alleviate the unemployment crisis facing 

the housing and construction industries by providing meaningful 
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employment for many persons in dire need. This Bill will be most 

beneficial to our senior citizens and families of low and moderate 

income who are falling victim to the demoralizing issues of in-

flation and recession so widespread today. 

We, therefore, urge this committee to report this Bill favorably 

leading to its adoption by the Legislature as soon as possible. 

I would like to comment if that is alright-­

SENATOR MERLINO: Certainly. 

SISTER RYAN: --on some of the questions you 

posed to Mayor Holland. The statement of the New Jersey 

Catholic Conference came out in support of the $90 million 

bond. We also commend Senator Merlino highly for his 

social justice and social concerns legislation in many 

areas but specifically--
SENATOR MERLINO: Will somebody please call 

the press? 

SISTER RYAN: --in this area of housing. If 

Senator Merlino is not able to get the Star Ledger and 

the Trentonian and the Trenton Times, in which it was 
reported on -October -ll~we--will make--sure,. the next 

time, that he is able to see in print that other papers 

besides the Catholic press are deeply concerned with 

his moral leadership. We commend him and his staff for 
what they have done and hope that the committee will 

also support this new bond issue. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Thank you, Sister. Are 

there any questions, Senator Dwyer? 

SENATOR DWYER: I have no questions. 

SENATOR MERLINO: The next speaker will be 

Sidney Willis, Director of the Division of Housing and 

Urban Renewal: q~_t:'.9-~Department of Community Affairs. 
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S I D N E Y L. W I L L I S: Senator Merlino, 

Senator Dwyer, Ladies and Gentlemen: My name is 

Sidney Willis. I am an assistant commissioner in the 

Department of Community Affairs responsible for 

housing and planning. 

I want to place the Department of 

Community Affairs completely in support of and behind 

the measure, Senate 1537, with respect to housing 

subsidy and housing bond assistance for the work of 

our department. 

I am accompanied here this morning by 

Gustav Escher who is representing the director of the 

Housing Finance Agency and will also have several 

comments to make. 

In this instance, the Senator from Mercer 

County, as usual, is out ahead of the bureaucracy in 

terms of introducing the necessary legislation. We 

are struggling to catch up and welcome the stimulation 

that ne has given us by introducing the bill. I am 

not in a position at this moment to document and to 

substantiate the size of the proposed bond issue, but 

the spirit is there and the need for a bond issue of 

some dimension, in the area of $100 million or more, 

is easily documented, and we will hasten to do so in 

conjunction with the Senator and the staff of the 

Senate. 

As a practical matter, we will need and do 

seek the support of the Governor's Capital Needs 

Commission which, at the present time, is looking 

at a number of different potential capital programs 

and bond issues. I think that, together with the 

support of the Legislature and that Commission, we 

can go to the public more successfully than we did 

in November of 1974. 

By way of background, I would mention that 

this proposed Senate 1537 and the bill earlier 

11 



sponsored by Senator Merlino and a number of members 

of the Senate in 1974 are both expansions of and based 

on experiences with a housing act of 1968 a bond 

assistance law in 1968 -- which provided for a very 

limited amount, $12.5 million. Those funds were 

used very, very effectively by the Housing Finance 

Agency through the years when it was establishing the 

extensive program that it now has in terms of providing 

moderate and lower-income housing for New Jersey 

citizens. Of the $12.5 million, as we reported 

in late September of 1974, same $8 million was actually 

committed and contracted for and made feasible in New 

Jersey, in the years since 1968, in excess of 

$100 million of construction based on piggybacking 

the State's bond assistance with federal subsidies 

and with the capability to provide financing through 

the Housing Finance Agency, part of our department. 

It was possible to project that number to actual 

construction in excess of $100 million. In addition, 

out of the funds, an additional $1.7 million has been 

reserved because in the waning days of the previous 

federal subsidy program -- the so-called section 236 

program -- it was possible for us to project ahead, on 
certain projects now under development, that there might 
b e a n e e d for additional subsidy because of the 

increasing operating costs of recent years. The 

Housing Finance Agency Board has set aside $1.7 million 
for that purpose, and there are pending commitments 

to projects which are now in the development stage and 

awaiting closing,-- that was for September, 1974, and 

I am sure an update would show those have already been 

closed -- of $2.3 million which effectively means that 

there are no remaining funds in the earlier bond 

assistance program and in the earlier bond issues under 

that program. 
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In 1974, in support of Senate 1388 for bond 

assistance, we represented that there were 18,000 

dwelling units, in various stages of design and 

preparation, in the pipeline at the Housing Finance 

Agency awaiting approval for mortgage 

commitment and that roughly one-half of those were 

slated for senior citizen occupancy. 

The new federal program, which was becoming 

apparent at that time in November of 1974, under the 

proposed federal Section 8, provided a formula under 

which, when analyses were done as to how those would 

work in New Jersey, it was apparent to us that, to a 

large extent, given the approved fair market rents 

for various market areas in the State of New Jersey, 

that federal program would have limited utility in the 

State without a specific state subsidy on top of the 

local subsidy. It was on that basis that we endorsed 

and supported and worked very hard for the Senate's 

measure. 

There have been some new 

federal calculations and some motions at HUD to present 

a fair market rent as the basis for our programs in 

New Jersey which might better meet our needs. Calcula­

tions, again, have been made by the Housing Finance 

Agency as to the practicality of using that federal 

program in New Jersey and what degree of state assistance 

would be needed if we were going to build those units 

in New Jersey. Without going into great detail on 

that study and representing these figures as preliminary, 

I would indicate that, at the present time, in the 

Newark area, without state subsidy, the federal program 

will make it impossible to build any elevator apartments 

of one or two or more bedrooms and will make it 

impossible to build any walk-up apartments of three or 

more bedrooms. 
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In the Atlantic City area, no units in the 

semi-row category of three or four bedrooms are presently 

feasible. No walk-up buildings whatsoever will be 

feasible for the HFA program in Atlantic City, and 

elevator apartment buildings will only be feasible 

if they are no-bedroom type units -- efficiency units. 

That is a preliminary analysis of the present 

federal program, and, once again, we must represent to 

you that it will be infeasible to provide the very 

units that we need the larger numbers of bedrooms 

in the urban areas of the State in addition to others. 

It will be infeasible to provide those units and to 

use the federal subsidy program in New Jersey unless 

there is an additional state subsidy as represented 

in the bond assistance act or unless other contingencies, 

which the Housing Finance Agency may want to discuss 

with you, can be made possible. 

With regard to the size of the bond issue, 

I think that we must recognize that the Governor, in 

his message to the Legislature of a week ago, had a 

great m a n y very valuable things to say about 

neighborhood preservation and the need for assistance 

of a variety of types to preserve the existing sound 

neighborhoods of the State of New Jersey. From those 

legislative proposals and from others which are 

currently in preparation in the Department of Community 

Affairs and elsewhere in the state government in 

pursuance of the Governor's legislative program, there 

are a variety of measures, each of which could require 

some state seeding or state assistance which might 

very well be a part of the bond issue proposed for 

this year. 

I will only give a few illustrations of 

that and promise that the department will provide a 

great deal more information as we proceed. 
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The state mortgage insurance program has been 

suggested w h i c h would bypass the cumbersome FHA 

insurance procedures in the State. That insurance 

progr~or an insurance program of that sort,was 

introduced and is now utilized in the State of 

Maryland, and we are looking at that model and 

attempting to design something that would follow that. 

In an instance of that sort, it might be necessary 

to seed that insurance program at the beginning 

to be sure that there are sufficient dollars to cover 

any losses, in the event those occu~ until the fund 

is large enough from the payments of the insurees. 

That could require several million dollars that could 

usefully be a part of the proposed statute. 

In addition, the Legislature has now had 

introduced an expansion of the mortgage finance 

agency to make it capable of providing home improve­

ment loans. Those home improvement loans would be 

based on interest rates that come from the agency's 

capability to borrow on the open market with revenue 

bonds. It might be very useful to have the capability 

to subsidize the interest rates on those loans in 

order to encourage private, individual home improve­

ment in neighborhoods which are indicated for 

neighborhood-wide preservation. That could require 

some seeding from this bond issue. 

There are a number of other proposals, and 

I use those only as illustrations. 

Let me conclude by thanking the Senate for 

its leadership in this bond issue and for moving 

early, particularly Senator Merlino. Let me promise 

that the department intends to provide all of the 

documentation and all of the bases for cost estimating 

the various programs. We will get them to you in 
' 

adequate time so that a full public discussion may be 
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held. We will be working with, and presenting this 

information to, the Capital Needs Commission in the 

hope that there will be support from that quarter 

for what we consider in the department a very high 

priority for state assistance in the area of housing. 

Thank you very much. 

SENATOR MERLINO: You are not suggesting, 

or are you suggesting, that the bill in its present 

form is not acceptable? 

MR. WILLIS: No: the bill in its present 

form is entirely acceptable. I am not in a position 

to support the dollar amount simply because I would 

like to give you a full, technical presentation. 

Certainly, it is in the ballpark. All I would 

suggest is that it may be possible, within the next 

several weeks, to suggest some additional 

modifications to the bill which might give it even 

more potential impact in housing construction. But, 

without those, the bill is necessary and is 

suffic·ient for consideration without amendment if 

that be your pleasure. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Do you feel that the terms 

of the bill, as now written on the rehabilitation of 
existing units, would allow for the funding of 

neighborhood preservation and code enforcement 
programs? 

MR. WILLIS: Senator, I hope so. I 

certainly think that that was, in part, the intent. 

SENATOR MERLINO: That is what we intended. 

MR. WILLIS: I just have not had the 

opportunity to study that and to compare it with the 

various measures that the Governor has recommended. 

Whatever we might suggest would be on the order---

SENATOR MERLINO: I can tell you this: The 

reason for the quick filing of this bill, right after 
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the defeat of the 1974 bond issue, was for the purpose 

of getting input from the Department of Community 

Affairs and the administration. You know that the 1974 

bill was a patched-up version of the 1968 bond issue 

which our staff put together rather quickly in order 

to meet the deadline to get on the ballot. We will 

be very happy to await any suggestions to improve the 

current bill, both from the Department of Community 

Affairs and from the Governor's office, if they have 

any. 

MR. WILLIS: Insofar as the department is 

concerned, we will comply with any deadline that you 

give us. We are presently working on this. 

SENATOR MERLINO: The quicker the better. 

Are there any other questions? (No questions) 

Thank you Mr. Willis. Please go ahead, Mr. Escher. 

G U S T A V E. E S C H E R III: Good morning. 

My name is Gustav Escher and I am the director of 

research and development for the New Jersey Housing 

Finance Agency. We are pleased to be here this 

morning to offer very brief testimony on behalf of 

the New Jersey Housing Finance Agency. Of course, 

this bill before us this morning is enormously 

important to our agency, and our executive director, 

Mr. William L. Johnston, wanted me to note that he is 
extremely sorry that, due to pressing reasons, he 

could not attend this hearing which, I know, he very 
much wanted to. 

I might begin with a few brief sentences on 

the background of the agency which was established in 

1967, became operable in 1969, and has constructed over 

8,600 moderate and low-income housing units since that 

time. We have about 6,000 more presently under 

construction or ready to go. Our bond and note 

obligations are presently nearly $400 million. 
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In teDms of the low and moderate-income 

housing indus.try in New Jersey, we produce approximately 

25 percent of all such units built in the State. In 

the State's major urban areas in our larger cities, 

particularly in the north, we construct more than 

80 percent of all such low and moderate-income housing. 

In some of those cities, we estimate that we are the 

only people in that business in those municipalities. 

We have not had the opportunity to make as 

thorough an investigation of the bill as we would like, 

so this morning I am going to be brief and confine my 

remarks to three areas that we see as potential for 

the agency in this proposed bill. 

The first has to do with the kinds of 

subsidies that Commissioner Willis detailed. I will 

not go over them again, but I would like to emphasize 

very, very clearly that the federal programs that 

we are being asked to utilize are nearly unacceptable. 

I might note for the record that there was movement 

among state agencies similar to ours across the 

country, nearly 30 of us, to boycott, in toto, that 

federal program to refuse to use it -- because we 

had found it so upworkable. 
This has to do with the fair market rentals that 

Commission Willis touched on. We have there a real, first­

class problem, and it is not a matter of negotiation and 
trying to badger somebody~ we have honest-to-God problems 
in making-it- WOrK--00 a day-to-day prOdUCtion level 1 and 

thai is the- ie~e-1 --that the HFA is concerned with. 

In terms of the relief that can be given 

by this proposed legislation, if we use the 1968 bond 

assistance law as a model, the figures that 

Commissioner Willis pointed out yield about a 1 to 13 

leverage ratio. There is the key concept -- leverage. 

For a very small amount of money, you can put the 
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boulder over the mountain. For just 10 percent or 

5 percent assistance, you can make a $10 million or 
$12 million project work. That is an absolutely 

fundamental concept, and that is the way the 1968 

issue was used. I have a 1 to 13 ratio~ it might 

be more or less~ it depends on how you splice the 

individual numbers. Anyway, that is the range of 

the impact that we can look for. 

Secondly -- and this is a little bit more 

in the financing end of the picture -- a very 

important use that these funds can be put to 
is the bond security reserve. The New Jersey Housing 

Finance Agency has been fortunate in obtaining some 

of the lowest prices for its money when we go out on 

bonds and notes -- obtaining very low interest rates. 

You all must be familiar with the fiasco that the 

New York agencies are facing. We have been much 

more fortunate. In fact, we have used some of the 

1968 monies to create a reserve fund behind our 

bonds, and this, in turn, produces a lower interest 

rate that we get from the market. So, there is 

another financing kind of mechanism whereby this 

money is extremely valuable. 

Let me again refer to the federal program, 
Section 8 of Title II. The security that we receive 

for our bonds under the old 236 program is 

infinitely more than what we are going to receive 
under the new Section 8 program, and the bond 

underwriters know it. It is a major hurdle. It is 

a purely fiduciary kind of problem that does not have 

very much to do with bricks and mortar, but it is 

very, very real when you look at your final interest 

rate bids. 

In the third area, there are special 

projects and certain rehabilitation efforts which 

the agency is interested in becoming more involved in, 
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and it is conceivable that, in ways that we have not 

yet studied--- We have a feeling-- at this point, it's 

probably nothing more than a feeling and a conviction 

that we could utilize same of these funds to make 

certain rehab or special types of projects work, 

possibly utilizing the money so that we would not be in 

a bonding position or utilizing the money to pay for 

certain elements of the project which are not 

imminently bondable or for which bond-rating houses 

would give a terrible rating. That is sort of a 

new angle, and it needs a little more study. 

In conclusion, let me say that we are a 

housing construction agency, and, quite simply, it is 

essential that this bill be approved if we are to 

continue the quality and the quantity of our work in 

the future. We occupy a substantial segment of the 

industry statewide, and in our urban areas, we are 

nearly the only o n e playing the game. 

I can only close by saying that a final 

analysis which we will prepare in conjunction with 

the dep~rtment will be forthcoming, and the kinds of 

concepts we have touched on this morning will be 

backed up with more analysis and material at that 

time. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR MERLINO: You say that you are 

primarily in the construction of housing. I take 

it, then, that the Housing Finance Agency has 

avoided any rehabilitation. 

MR. ESCHER: I think we have one or two 

projects presently under review. It would be fair 

to say, Senator, that the vast majority of our work 

is new multi-familY construction. This is an 

area under the new federal regulations which is 

going to look more interesting because the federal 
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regulations allow you the same kind of cash flow 

for n~w construction that they do for substantial 

rehab. If you can get a rehab project that is less 

expensive per unit, it is a more feasible project. 

This is an area into which we have looked in the 

past but have not really gone after. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Is that really the 

criteria that we should look at -- the feasibility 

of it? An agency such as yours would be one that would 

have to undertake those projectswhichwould not be that 

attractive to private developers or private money. 

MR. ESCHER: Clearly, and so we do. It is, 

in fact, things such as the bill before us this 

morning that allow us to do our job much better. 

SENATOR MERLINO: That is one of the main 

reasoDs for the bill. 

MR. ESCHER: Clearly. 

SENATOR MERLINO: As far as the financing 

goes, do general obligation bonds of the State, such 

as those offered in this bill, receive a more favorable 

interest rate than bonds of the Housing Finance Agency? 

MR. ESCHER: I wouldn't know for sure. The 

underwriters would have to read all the legislative 

back-up, but I would presume so. 

SENATOR MERLINO: There are so many units that 

can be built. Would the fact that we are calling for 
$180 million saturate the market right away or stretch 

out the period of time in which you could do this? 
MR. ESCHER: Without having the benefit of 

an awful lot of analysis, I would say that this is a 

long-term effort. I don't think the voters would be 
asked to pass judgment on this kind of bill again in 

the near future. We have been using $12.5 million 

for six years. 
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SENATOR MERLINO: That was, of course, 

different. We are out of the federal market, so 

we cannot use that devise, at least not as successfully 

as it was. 
MR. ESCHER: Perhaps. I am just saying that 

the magnitude of the money--- Like Commissioner 

Willis, I cannot comment on the exact dollar amount 

that is appropriate, but if you figure on a 1 to 10 

kind of leverage effect -- a very rough and unfair 

kind of figure -- you are multiplying your $180 million 

investment by 10 which is an enormously substantial 

amount of money. It is being used in conjunction with 

our agency, or parts of it will be, and our bonding 

limit is unlimited. 

SENATOR DWYER: Toward the end of your 

statement, you left me a little confused. You talked 

about experimenting in a new area, and you kind of 

got muddled and I didn•t follow you. Were you talking 

about rehabilitation at that point? 

MR. ESCHER: Yes, and some kinds of special 

projects. If you were muddled, it was probably because 

I am a little bit myself. Let me say this: We do not 

want to limit the kinds of uses that this money could 
be used for to what we have seen before, particularly 
with the changes in the federal level. We want to 
keep ourselves as broad and as open to some innovative 

utili~?t!ol_ls as P()~S_!!>le_~ That is merely a thought. 
There are pieces of certain projects that are difficult 

to relate your bonding capacity to, and there are 

non-mortgageable kinds of problems. If this money could 

be used to help those aspects of those problems---

SENATOR DWYER: Could you just give me an 

example-of what might not be mortgageable? 

MR. WILLIS: Perhaps this would serve as an 

example: In two instances, to my knowledge, the 
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Housing Finance Agency has provided construction 

financing for the substantial rehabilitation of 

apartment buildings in Hoboken. In each of those 

cases, as in most rehabilitation efforts, it is 

very difficult to estimate what the actual final 

cost is going to be because no one know& until we 

start tearing off the plaster, what it looks like. 

In that instance, to provide a mortgage, one must 

take a chance and present a cost estimate and hope 

that that will do the job. Then, all the calculations 

are based on that. What has been suggested by the 

Housing Finance Agency -- and what we would like 

to see considered and may, in fact, be enabled in 

this bill -- is that state funds be used as a back-up 

in the event that, once we have torn a part of the 

building down, we find that we must have a larger 

mortgage than had been anticipated in order to make 

it possible for us to go ahead, finish the building, 

put it back together, and get it back on the market. 

It is that kind of "filling the gap" that would make 

it possible to take more risks, and in rehabilitation, 

we do take more risks. It is difficult to pin down 

exactly what it is going to cost us. 

SENATOR DWYER: More risks and much, much 

greater control. 

MR. WILLIS: We do, certainly, have to have 
control over costs. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Apparently the Housing 

Finance Agency is no.longer, and perhaps never was, 

committed to urban renewal and urban rejuvenation. 

I say that because of the fact that you have moved 

your offices out of the City of Trenton and into 

suburban Mercer County. 

MR. ESCHER: I don't think that would be a 

fair overall characterization, Senator Merlino. 
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SENATOR MERLINO: I don't pretend to 

be fair. 
MR. ESCHER: On the other hand, the only new 

moderate-income housing built in Trenton is the 

Kingsbury, and there are 364 units there that we put 

ourselves behind. I believe there is some similar 

bond issue behind that. 

SENATOR MERLINO: My statement was directed 

at your moving your offices out of the city. 

MR. ESCHER: I wouldn't be able to comment 

fairly on that this morning, your honor. 

SENATOR MERLINO: I assume it is temporary. 

Thank you very much. The next speaker will be 

Mr. Arthur Young of the Building Contractors 

Association of New Jersey. 
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A R T H U R T. Y 0 U N G: I am Art Young. I 

am Director of Legislative Affairs for the Building 

Contractors Association. 

SENATOR MERLINO: What they used to call a lobbyist. 

MR. YOUNG: Yes, sir. 

We are the commercial and industrial end of con­

struction in the State of New Je~sey. I thought it 

would be remiss if we did not comment on this bill, even 

though we are not directly related to the home-building 

industry. 

It has, of course, long-range implications for us. 

Wherever you build houses, commercial and industrial 

construction is bound to follow. So we view the bill 

very favorably from that aspect. But of most importance, 

I think the economic situation in the construction 

industry can be assisted if this bill is passed. Anything 

that primes the pump and gets some of our craftsmen back 

to work, we consider very, very critical at this time. 

Our business in commercial and industrial is off 

40 percent~ we are running as high as 35 percent unemploy­

ment. The home builders we know are in worse shape. 

Residential builders in this State are really under the 

gun. 

I don't know whether anyone is here from the 

New Jersey Home Builders, but I thought I might comment. 

I know they are out of the state at a convention. 

I know they would be very much interested and very much 

in support of this measure. 

I, myself, sit on the Board of Directors of SEED, 

the Society for Environmental and Economic Development. 

We did support the last bond issue and we certainly 

would support this one. 

Your comments were very well taken, in that we all 

have a lot of work to do in promoting this. It is not 

sufficient to put it on the ballot unless we can get 
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the public sold. We are willing to help. We, as an 

Association, did work on all four bond issues the last 

time around. 

Those are the only comments I have unless there 

are any questions. We would like you to act favorably 

on it. We thank you for giving us the opportunity to 

speak this morning. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Thank you for coming. 

Are there any questions? (No questions.) 

Frank Haines, New Jersey Taxpayers Association. 

F R A N K W. H A I N E S: Senator Merlino 

and Members of the Senate Committee on Revenue, Finance 

and Appropriations: I am Frank Haines, Executive 

Director of the New Jersey Taxpayers Association, a 

non-profit, non-partisan, governmental research organ­

ization incorporated in 1930, located here in Trenton. 

We are still in Trenton, Senator, on North Broad Street. 

Senate 1537, which would authorize submission of 

a $180 million housing bond issue to referendum in 

November 1975, certainly is commendable in its attempt 

to cornbate the State's serious unemployment and faltering 

economy through advancing the cause of housing financing. 

However, I wish to express the view of the New Jersey 

Taxpayers Association that any action on this measure 

at this time in our view would be premature and, 

accordingly, should be postponed. 

The reason for the Association's position is 

very simple. In mid-December, Governor Byrne announced 

the appointment of a 19-member Commission to Study the 

Capital Needs of the State. His action followed 

November's rather convincing, I guess, voter rejection 

of three out of four bond issues. Insufficient advanced 

planning, and an inadequate voter education program 

resulting from late legislative approval of the bills 

contributed to defeat of the bond questions in our opinion. 
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Until the State can demonstrate that it has a 

comprehensive long-range capital planning program and 

a balanced financing program with which to implement 

the capital process, voters should not be asked to 

consider any bond issues, nor can they be expected to 

approve any which are hastily conceived or enacted 

without regard for· overall State capital priorities. 

The Governor has requested the new study commission 

to report by April 15. That is a rather tremendous task 

which he has assigned to them in view of the scope of 

the project, and I say that from watching the Governor 

Hughes Commission in its efforts back in 1967, I think 

it was. That report should become the sole basis for 

any bond issues to be presented to the voters this 

year, if in fact bond issues for any purposes are 

recommended. Moreover, any action on major capital 

projects should be held in abeyance until the Capital 

Needs Study has been completed and the report issued. 

In view of the significant lack of supporting 

information about last year's bond proposals, we 

respectfully suggest that hereafter the statement on 

any proposed bond issue bill contain the following basic 

information: 

1. Details of what the bond issue would accomplish. 

2. Relative importance of the proposed bond 

issue compared with other pending capital needs, that 

is, the priority and the justification therefor. 

3. Immediate and extended State budget cost 

implications, particularly the impact on current 

operations and debt service, and how those costs would 

be financed. 

I have a technical question I would like to 

put forth, Senator. This carne up in consideration 

of the bill last year and I don't recall that it was 
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ever ·answered, and it might be something to which you 

have an answer. At least it should be explored. 

On page 3 of the bill, Section 4 b, there is 

created a housing assistance fund. In that fund would 

go the proceeds of the bonds, moneys from repayment 

of loans and advances, income from the investment of 

bond funds and any other funds that might be available. 

There is one thing that I just wonder about - and 

maybe this is the intent - and that is whether that 

fund would in effect and by intent become a revolving 

fund. Therefore, it would be almost a perpetual fund. 

As money is repaid, it would then be reloaned. I 

wonder whether that is the intent of the issue. I raise 

this question because the bill provides the debt service 

for the bonds to be paid from the General Treasury, with 

sales tax money being the first pledge, etc., which 

is part of the constitutional requirement that some 

revenues be allocated to bond issues. 

I don•t know whether the bond issue of 1968, the 

$12.5 million,has been, in effect, a perpetual fund or 

whether this would do that. But in many cases where 

you are providing moneys strictly for capital outlay, 

then, of course, once the building is built, you have 

utilized the fund. But this is not a straight capital 

project financing type bond issue. .so I think it 

would help the general public in understanding this, 

if they knew whether this would ~ecome a type of 

perpetual fund, which would in turn be reloaned, etc., 

for continuation of housing purposes. 

I don•t know the answer and I think it would 

certainly be helpful for us who are looking at this 

thing and in terms of ultimate understanding and 

education on a similar bond issue to have an answer 

to that question. 
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SENATOR MERLINO: I think it is a very good question. 

Rather than give you an off-the-top-of-my-head answer, 

I think we should give a rather detailed answer to you 

and the general public. 

There is nothing wrong in having a revolving fund 

in an operation such as this. It is not like a highway 

bond issue where you float the bonds to build the highways • 

This was not intended to be that kind of an issue. 

Mr. Haines, I note you have made three recommendations 

and two of them are answered in the statement attached 

to the bill. Perhaps number three wasn't answered in 

the statement attached to the bill. 

MR. HAINES: I think, Senator, if I may respond, 

in terms of details, certainly there is a rather adequate 

financial statement. 

SENATOR MERLINO: More than usual • 

MR. HAINES: True, yes, sir. However, it still 

would not meet, I think, the criteria we would like to 

see in terms of some specifics. I think only someone from 

the Housing Agency who is involved in this might be able 

to develop some overall concept. 

The priority question, of course, is one that can 

only come if there is a comprehensive capital program 

with some allocation by some agency, not necessarily, 

let's say, that which the Legislative Branch assumes, 

but that which the Executive Branch, presumably having 

the first responsibility for a comprehensive capital program, 

would allocate as a result of its overall evaluation of 

all of the capital needs of the State government. 

Finally, in point three, cost implications, certainly 

again that would involve some estimate of annual debt 

service costs, based on current prices in the bond market, 

as well as how and how much administrative cost of such 

an issue would be provided, whether it would come from 
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these moneys or whether it would have to come from a 

separate appropriation in the budget, etc. I think 

the clarification of those points, although I didn't 

get into detail, is the type of thing that we think we 

would like to see. It would be extremely helpful in 

evaluating and educating on bond issue questions. 

SENATOR MERLINO: On the other point that you. 

have raised about postponing the movement of this bond, 

you have been operating in the bureaucratic sphere for 

a long time~ and I have been frustrated in the bureaucratic 

sphere for a short time. I have found that it was because 

of the bureaucratic operation that the 1974 bill was 

gotten together at the last minute, so to say, and put 

on the ballot. I am not about to let that happen again. 

You will find within a month after the 1974 election, 

this new bill was introduced and it was for that reason. 

If the bill serves no other purpose, it has stimulated 

the interest which is apparent and obvious here today. 

It is not my intent as the sponsor of this bill to 

circumvent the adrninisr.:· ::~.tion in its study of capital 

needs and capital plam ... ..i.:~'l'. But I am not about to wait, 

as sponsor of this bill, um ... il s.-)me report is filed by 

a group. I want to get the th"i. .. 1g s arted now. 

By the same token, it JG not my intention that 

this bill just go ahead fu~l steam without input from 

anyone else - any other group or any other division of 

government. My way of thinking is that someone has to 

start the ball rolling, and this is my way of getting 

the ball rolling. Hopefully there are people like your­

self representing groupsthat will get a little fire 

going in the areas where it is needed. 

MR. HAINES: May I comment, sir? 

SENATOR MERLINO: Surely. 

MR. HAINES: To go back in history a little bit 
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to the first capital needs study commission in the late 

'60's, that commission which Governor Hughes created came 

as a result, I think, of an experience that it was 

becoming difficult to get voter approval of bond issues 

and there was an extensive development of backlogs in the 

capital area. 

I would only point,in terms of experience, that 

following that report which recommended actually about 

$2 billion of capital needs, the first series of bond 

issues having had significant documentation, which was 

considered accurate by many of the groups who were interested 

in various functions -- that report provided the basis 

for broad-spread public support for the various capital 

needs that were recommended. There was an extensive 

evaluation,of course, of all the needs at the time. 

There had been developed in the Hughes administration 

and before, a rather comprehensive capital program. Mr. 

Willis who testified earlier is well familiar with it 

and had a great deal to do with it. 

Regrettably for a period of time between adminis­

trations, this overall process sort of either slowed down 

or failed to develop. Therefore, we got what we'd had through 

the '50's; we can only term it sort of crisis bond 

financing. That is, I think, one of the basic reasons 

that part of the package last year -- I say "package" but 

it ended up being a significant number -- failed. Maybe 

the economic situation had something to do with it. 

But unless there are detailed evidence and significant 

documentation of capital needs by an executive agency 

combined with legislative review, I would forecast a 
black day in terms of future bond issues that may be 

corning. 

I think the essentia~of public support are in an 

overall capital planning process which looks at priorities 

and tries to evaluate priorities for the citizen initially. 
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I am citing the history with the hope that again 

with a comprehensive report which will touch all these 

needs, it will give a much more extensive documentation 

than we have had in recent years to support bond issues, 

and that some recommendations will be forthcoming for 

a;1 integrated financial program, not necessarily that 

these things have to all be done by bond issues. At 

some point, the cost of debt service is going to catch 

up with us and it is beginning to in the budget, as you 

know, being Chairman of the Appropriations Committee. 

That was our view. We have been a long-time 

proponent of organized capital planning and programming. 

That was the view of the Association which was determined 

at a meeting of our Executive Committee last night when 

we reviewed this whole process. 

Thank you very muc~ sir. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Senator Dwyer, do you have any 

questions? 

SENATOR DWYER: ~be only thing on which I am a 

little confused is that p,!rpetui ty concept. The use of 

the moneys can't be perpett:- 1 because the bonds have to 

be paid off. At some point t1.2 mc~ey as it comes back 

to the State agency has to go back ouL to the bondholders. 

You start at point zero and yc'l have to arrive at point 

zero, I think. 

MR. HAINES: Well, if you were building a building, 

Senator ---

SENATOR DWYER: It is not a revolving fund in 

perpetuity. 

MR. HAINES: If you were building a building, once 

you have paid the construction costs of the building, you 

have used your bond moneys and subsequently there must 

be a General Treasury appropriation for both principal 

and interest to pay off the bonds. What I really questioned 
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was that inasmuch as you are in a process here where 

much of this money will be loaned - at least the way I 

read it - and would be subsequently repaid, some proportion 

of it, the repayments then go into a fund. And unless 

there was say an understanding or an arrangement or maybe 

the discretion is there with the State financial officials, 

then there would be a transfer from that housing fund 

into the General Treasury in an amount to pay off the 

annual principal and interest payments. 

This happens, let's say, in a general obligation bond 

issue now where the bond moneys are not necessarily needed 

once the bonds are sold initially for construction. So 

they are immediately reinvested and interest is raised 

and that interest goes into the General Treasury, and 

for the first year or so provides an offset to the General 

Treasury's appropriation. But once the money has been 

spent, there is nothing further to be reinvested. So it 

must come then strictly from the General Treasury appropriation. 

I merely raise the question whether since this is 

a type of loan to some extent which should be repaid, 

those repayments would then be transferred to General 

Treasury to pay off debt service or whether they would in 

effect become a sort of perpetual revolving fund which 

could in turn be reloaned for further housing needs. 

As I see it in my first reading, there is no basic provision 

for reducing the amount of the loans outstanding at 

any point. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Mr. Willis. 

MR. WILLIS: If I may, I think that there are three 

concepts that might be helpful to point out. The principal 

intent of this legislation as the prior legislation would 

be that these would be general obligation bonds that 

would be repaid from each year's appropriation and that 

these would not be confused with the revenue bonds of 
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the Housing Finance Agency which repays from its own 

mortgage payments its own bonds and does not look to 

the Legislature for repayment. 

These bonds are general obligation bonds to be 

repaid by the Legislature. 

Now prudence on the part of the department and the 

Housing Finance Agency has led us to use the funds 

wherever possible in a situation where we could hope to 

have them recovered over a long period of time. Most 

of the prior bond assistance funds were used for a 

second mortgage, the repayments for which would not 

become available to us until after 40 years or perhaps 

in some instances 48 years. So it is not practical to 

tie those repayments to the payments of the bonds them­

selves which would begin to run the moment we begin to 

use the funds. 

Our thought was that in so far as possible as re­

payment became available to us that fund could then 

be used again for housing purposes. But up to now the 

experience has been tr~t we won•t be getting any of this 

back for 40 years. 

In addition, there ..L~ ·the whole concept of the 
management of the money, which i __ ,....imarily a matter for 

the Treasurer. Now fast money~'" are l.h·;:-rowed and made 

available for use would be ~ fiscal management concept 

rather than any concern about the repayment of the bonds. 

The bill does propose that where the moneys are 

borrowed in accordance with an approved bond authorization, 

where the moneys are borrowed and they are not immediately 

drawn down by the Housing Finance Agency for any specific 

project, those rnoney.sdo earn interest. And we suggest 

that that interest should go back into the fund itself. 

But that is a fiscal management thing and pretty largely 

irrelevant to the repayment of the bonds or to the 
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use of the dollars by the Housing Finance Agency. 

I don't know whether that has helped to clear things 

up~ perhaps it hasn't. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Thank you. 

SENATOR VREELAND: I am just interested in the 

three points here - the questions that are raised. It 

seems to me with regard to number two, priorities, that 

housing is one of the top priorities in the State of New 

Jersey. I don't think there is any question about that. 

I think you have made a good point in number 

three and, as Senator Merlino has said, that will be 

answered. I think the question of how much money we 

really will be talking about when we talk about $180 

million and the interest over a period of years is 

important. It is going to be important to the voters. 

I don't think there is any question about that. 

I think that the priority, to my way of thinking, 

is already established. Maybe you don't think so. 

MR. HAINES: No. The only thing, sir, is that 

it is difficult to determine, very honestly, unless you 

see a list of all the needs at one time and then make 

some measure to weigh them. It is a difficult process 

even when you have the figures in front of you. But 

there are some ways being developed in order to establish 

some relationships. 

Frankly, at this time, I wouldn't attempt in my own 

mind, knowing what I know at this point, to say how you 

evaluate housing versus needs in institutiomor versus 

transportation or versus higher education or versus 

needs in many other areas in which at some point there 

will be some documentation. You may have your own basis 

for evaluation and you can defend it. But I think again 

for the general public, they have to have it in relation to 
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something in order to be convinced themselves. Somebody 

has to suggest something. After seeing it all, it then 

may become quite subjective. But at some point they 

have to see what the comparisons are. And that is merely 

what we suggest ought to be done. 

SENATOR VREELAND: I think you are right. I said 

I think it is already established that housing is one of 

the top priorities. Now, of course, you bring up insti­

tutions, etc., with which I have to agree. I guess it 

is a matter of evaluating which in your opinion or the 

voters' opinion gets top priority. 

You mentioned higher education. Of course, I would 

rate these priorities in a different sequence maybe than 

you would. 

MR. HAINES: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Thank you. 

William Beren, League for Conservation Legislation. 

W I L L I A M B E R E N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Good morning to t.he Committee. My name is William 

Beren. I represent the :~ague for Conservation Legislation. 

And today my remarks havE:: a.lso been endorsed by the 

New Jersey Public Interest R~=ea~ 'h Group. 

As I am sure the committe~ 1s aware, LCL is primarily 

a conservation group 

SENATOR MERLINO: They didn't want to come in here 

on their own? 

MR. BEREN: The short notice of the hearing kind of 

left us a bit understaffed. 

LCL is primarily interested in preserving New Jersey's 

natural resources. However, one of those resources that 

we are concerned with is people, and the social needs 

they have. 

I am not speaking today as an expert in housing. I 

pretenq no knowledge of the need for housing in the State, 

nor whether or not t.~.J l:.ond issue is too little or too 
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much to meet that need. And I certainly don't know anything 

about the technical side of funding new housing starts. 

But the League does realize that the housing industry 

in the State is in need of assistance today. Tight money, 

high interest rates, and a confused federal policy have 

combined to put the screws on this particular industry -

an industry which has always been considered an important 

bellweather economic indicator. We are also assuming 

that, as usual, it is the poor, the elderly, and the 

almost poor who have the most difficulties finding a 

decent place to live at a price they can afford. It was 

for these reasons that LCL supported the housing bond 

issue this fall, and will probably continue to support 

this one. 

Yet housing is but one of some very serious issues 

facing New Jersey today. Unemployment, economic stagnation, 

energy shortages, and a crazy-quilt pattern of land develop­

ment hang heavy over our heads. New Jersey can no longer 

afford the piecemeal approach to reform that solves one 

problem only to create another one somewhere else. It 

is time for the Legislature to reach for innovative and 

comprehensive solutions that will resolve the conflicts, 

and which will allow us to have jobs, a healthy economy, 

social equality, and a clean environment all together, 

at the same time. 

Specifically, LCL proposes that in order for a 

developer to qualify for funds in this bond issue, he 

be required to meet minimum insulation and construction 

standards, and that the housing be located in or near 

our urban areas with access to mass transit. 

Traditionally, the cheap cost of energy and Americans' 

preoccupation with purchase price as opposed to operating 

costs have resulted in poor construction, insufficient 

insulation, and a general waste of energy. For the poor, 
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who are more likely to live in old, substandard housing, 

this is particularly important, because it means their 

fuel bills are that much higher. A recent national survey 

done for the Ford Foundation's Energy Policy Project 

indicated that the poor with an average income of $2500 

a year spent 15.2 percent of their income for energy, 

compared to 7.2 percent for the lower middle class, who 

made $8000 a year~ and the well-to-do who earned an 

average income of $25,000 a year spent only 4.1 percent 

of their income on energy. 

In line with our tradition of the rich getting richer 

and the poor getting poorer lower income families can't even 

afford to install insulation and storm windows, which can 

cost up to $200, and as a result are too poor to save 

money. As the Ford Foundation found: 

Since poor families usually occupy smaller dwellings, 
and are the most likely of all the income groups 
to live in apartments or attached houses, one might 
reasonably expect their heating fuel consumption 
to be significantly lower than that of other income 
groups. But the relatively small difference in 
consumption of natural gas - the heating fuel used 
in 60 percent of n:l American homes- may be 
traced to the coL~;_+- ons of homes, particularly 
the presence or abSeL<'; of insulation and StOrm 
windows. 

The Ford Foundation's fincingE. are illuminating 

in this regard. Fifty perce· t of the poor have no insulation 

in their homes, while over ~0 percent of the well-to-do 
have some. Sevemty percent of the poor lack storm 

windows, compared to only 38 percent of the well-to-do. 
---· ----- --" -- . . -- -- -------· ---- -

I included in the back of my testimony a chart which 
------

shows those figures. (See page 42 for chart.} 

The problem is not just better insulation standards, 

but also construction standards. Poorly fitting doors 

and windows, symptomatic of today's new construction, 

are significant sources of heat loss. According to a 

recent Public Service advertisement in the Star Ledger 
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last week, a quarter-inch crack under a three-foot-wide 

door will result in significant heat loss. 

It is incumbent on the State to insist on high 

building standards and proper insulation for buildings 

that are built with State funds. Newspaper articles in 

the past few weeks have documented the high numbers of 

elderly poor and others who are going without heat 

this winter because they can't pay their fuel bills. 

While the housing may cost a little more for the State 

to construct at these high standards, they will be 

better built, save tenants and operating authorities 

money in the long term, and will conserve valuable fossil 

fuels. 

LCL, along with the State Energy Office, is. supporting 

the inclusion of a mandatory energy conservation code 

in the proposed statewide building code legislation now 

before the Senate and the Assembly. We feel that by 

insisting on similar requirements from publicly assisted 

housing, this bond issue can demonstrate to private industry 

and the public the gains that are possible in energy 

conservation. 

Over and beyond the mandating of minimal standards, 

the bond can also be used to stimulate development 

of innovative energy systems. Builders should be 

encouraged to install solar energy panels, fuel cells, 

and other energy conserving devices, such as is being 

done in the housing projects that are now going up in 

Jersey City. If the project is to be a Planned Unit 

Development or other form of large scale development, 

then a Total Energy System might be appropriate for 

inclusion in those plans. 

Access to mass transit for work and shopping are 

of prime concern to the public. Residents of the public 

housing can be expected to rely even more heavily on 
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mass transit than other sectors of the population. 

LCL believes that from all points of view, it makes sense 

to locate housing along existing transit corridors, mak­

ing use of presently underutilized mass transit routes, 

both rail and bus. In this way, we can arrest suburban 

sprawl, make a commitment to rebuild our cities, preserve 

open space, and reduce dependence on the automobile and 

gasoline in one fell swoop. 

Thank you very much for your time and consideration. 

We hope to follow through on this and get some more 

technical information on what specific standards can 

be included in the bond legislation, which we will be 

glad to pass along to the Committee. 

SENATOR DWYER: That was a good statement. 

MR. BEREN: Thank you. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: That was a very good statement. 

Do you have figures on the relative costs of putting 

solar enerqy and those types of things that you mentioned 

in buildings? 

MR. BEREN: No, I don't. I will try to get that 

information. As I said .t the beginning, I was not in 

Trenton last week. I goL ~tice of this hearing on 

Monday and I quickly put thib to< ~ther. 

I have spoken to some arclli tee i:s who are working 

principally on office buildi"JS, trying to refit 

existing office buildings to conserve up to 50 percent 

of the energy they use. I am not quite su:e whether his 

findings are relevant to residential construction. But 

he is not certain at all that increased insulation and 

energy-conserving systems would actually increase the 

total cost of buildings because of the tradeoffs that 

happen. It may cost a little more for insulation, but 

you cut down on lighting or your ventilating system or 

something like that. For residential construction, I 
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really have no figures available and will try to get 

you those. 

SENATOR MERLINO: Is there anyone else who wishes 

to be heard. We will take a five-minute break to give 

the stenographer a rest, and see if anyone else comes 

in • 

(Short recess) 

SENATOR MERLINO: Since no other people have 

come in to speak, the hearing is adjourned. 

(Hearing Concluded) 
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SUBMITTED BY WILLI~~ BEREN 

Figure 24-Percent of households with no insulation 

Noll: Single family hOuses only 
Souru: Washington Cenler for Metropolilan Studies 

Figure 25-Percent of households with no storm windows 

Sowce: Washington Center for Mc:\ropolilan Studies 

Almost three-quarters of all American single family 
homes have some insulation.ct However, over .half the single 
family houses of the poor have no insulation at all, com­
pared to a mere 5 percent of the houses of the well-to-do. 

d This discussion is based upon information given by survey respondents who 
stated that they knew whether or not their homes were insulated. The "don't 
know" category (9 percent of respondents) was excluded. 
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